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1

SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA TUESDAY, AUGUST 24, 2004 1:00 P.M.

2

--000--

3

(Call to order of the Court.)

4

THE CLERK:

Two on calendar, 04 Civil 656, Cooper

5 versus Brown, court trial hearing regarding habeas corpus,
6 day 11.
7

THE COURT:

State your appearances.

8

MR. ALEXANDER:

Thank you, your Honor.

9 Alexander on behalf of the Petitioner.
10

THE COURT:

11

MS. HAWKINS:

Welcome back.
David

Good afternoon.

Good afternoon.
Good afternoon, your Honor.

Ann

12 Hawkins on behalf of the Petitioner.
13

MS. WILKENS:

Good afternoon, your Honor.

Holly

14 Wilkens, Deputy Attorney General, for the Respondent.
15

MS. DENAULT:

Good afternoon, your Honor.

Deputy

16 Attorney General Adrianne Denault on behalf of Respondent.
17

THE COURT:

18

MS. WILKENS:

Thank you.

We may call a witness.

Your Honor, if I -- if I might

19 clarify, as ordered by the Court, we have secured and
20 produced the presence of two witnesses today.

We had

21 indicated that Mr. Mansfield would be here today, but we
22 were mistaken.

He is being transported from prison and will

23 be here tomorrow and we apologize.
24

THE COURT:

We had to provide a certified copy, a

25 UPS certified copy of our order which we thought was going
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1 to get there on time, but he was put on a bus, and sometimes
2 prisoner transport takes a while.

So tomorrow will work out

3 fine.
4

MS. WILKENS:

5 inconvenience.

We do apologize for that

We do have Mr. Ward here and Mr. Shephard,

6 and I have notified counsel that as the proponent of the
7 testimony of these witnesses, it is expected that he will
8 conduct the direct examination because it's very difficult
9 for us as a respondent to be eliciting the testimony that
10 the Petitioner seeks to put before the Court.
11

THE

COURT:~

Okay.

If that works out.

Why don't

12 we call Mr. Shephard first.
13

MS. WILKENS:

We had -- we had intended to call

14 Mr. Ward because he works in Visalia and would like to get
15 home to
Okay.

16

THE COURT:

17

MS. WILKENS:

18

THE COURT:

19

MR. ALEXANDER:

20

THE COURT:

21

MR. ALEXANDER:

All right.

Thank you, your Honor.
Fine.
So who are we doing, Ward?

Mr. Ward.
Okay.

Let me just state for the

22 record, your Honor, that these two names -- well, not Mr.
23 Shephard -- Mr. Ward was contained in your Honor's July 29th
24 order, was not a name that we had suggested, but I'm happy
25 to go first.

So
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3

MS. WILKENS:

1

Your Honor, that was in the

2 evidentiary hearing request repeatedly by counsel as what he
3 intended to produce to this Court.

So I disagree with the

4 characterization that he did not seek to produce Curtis
5 Ward's testimony.
6

THE COURT:

7

MR. ALEXANDER:

8

THE COURT:

9 Mr.

Okay.

But he's going to go --

I'm happy to go forward.

He's going to go forward.

We'll call

Ward.

10

MR. ALEXANDER:

11

THE COURT:

12
13

Thank you, your Honor.

Come forward.

CURTIS WARD - PETITIONER'S WITNESS

-

SWORN

Please state your - - please state your

THE CLERK:

14 name and spell your first and last name for the record.
15

THE WITNESS:

Curtis Lee Ward, C-U-R-T-I-S

16 W-A-R-D.
17

MR. ALEXANDER:

Your Honor, do we want to exclude

18 Mr. Shephard as a witness from the courtroom?
19

THE COURT:

20

MR. ALEXANDER:

21

THE COURT:

22 Mr. Shephard here?

We may.
Thank you.

Would you like to step out, Mr. -- is
If you could just step out and then

23 close the door, and then we'll call you when we're ready for
24 you.
25

MR. ALEXANDER:

Thank you, your Honor.

May I
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1 proceed?
2

THE COURT:

Uh-huh.

3

MR. ALEXANDER:

Thank you.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

4

5 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
6 Q

Good afternoon, Mr. Ward.

Is your full name Curtis Lee

7 Ward?
8 A

Yes, that is correct.

9 Q

I see.

And at sometime in your career did you work for

10 the San Bernardino Sheriff's Department?
11 A

Yes, sir, I did.

12 Q

And would you please tell us the years that you worked

13 for the San Bernardino Sheriff's Department?
14 A

I was employed with San Bernardino from 1978 until

15 1984.
16 Q

Do you recall more precisely in

- -

when in 1984 you

17 ceased to work for the San Bernardino Sheriff's Department?
believe it was in August of 1984.

18 A

I

19 Q

And were you

- -

did you leave voluntarily or were you

20 terminated?
21 A

I left voluntarily.

22 Q

All right.

23 A

Yes, sir, I did.

24 Q

All right.

And did you remain in law enforcement?

Did you remain in San Bernardino in law

25 enforcement?
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5

1 A

No, sir.

I went to work for the City of Pomona Police

2 Department.
3 Q

All right.

In connection with your responsibilities

4 with the City of Pomona, would I be correct that you had no
5 involvement at all in the investigation of the crimes
6 relating to the Ryan -- members of the Ryan family and Chris
7 Hughes?
8 A

With my position with Pomona?

9 Q

Yes.

10 A

Yes, sir.

11 Q

All right.

Now, am I -- is it also correct, sir, that

12 you were a patrol officer with the San Bernardino Sheriff's
13 Department in 1983 until you left in 1984?
14 A

That is correct.

15 Q

And were you a patrol officer at all times that you

16 were employed by the San Bernardino Sheriff's Department?
17 A

For a brief one-month period during the time I was

18 first employed, I was working in the custodial facility at
19 Glen Helen Rehabilitation Center where I transferred to a
20 desert substation for three years and then transferred to
21 the West End Station.

So I have a total of over five and a

22 half years of patrol deputy, yes, sir.
23 Q

Okay.

So in 1983 and 1984, you were stationed at the

24 West End Station?
25 A

Yes, sir, I was.
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1 Q

Thank you.

And, just to be certain, at no time were

2 you a detective for the San Bernardino Sheriff's Department?
3 A

No, sir, I was not.

4 Q

And am I correct that a patrol officer essentially

5 travels around a designated area in a patrol car?
6 A

Yes, sir.

7 Q

All right.

Now, subsequent to -- excuse me.

You did

8 testify at the trial of -- of Kevin Cooper, did you not?
9 A

I do not believe I testified in the trial in San Diego.

10 I testified what I believe was the preliminary hearing in
11 San Bernardino courthouse.
12 Q

Very well.

All right.

Now, apart from your testimony

13 at the preliminary hearing in San Diego courthouse -THE COURT:

14

San Bernardino.

15 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
16 Q

I'm sorry.

I apologize -- San Bernardino County

17 courthouse, have you ever been interviewed by any members
18 who you understood to be affiliated with law enforcement in
19 connection with the Ryan Hughes murders?
20 A

I would have to say no.

My affiliation was tertiary at

21 the time.
22 Q

Tertiary?

23 A

Yeah, outside.

It was -- I was not related to the

24 general investigation.

So I was not interviewed by any of

25 the staff of San Bernardino.
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1 Q

All right.

2 A

Yes, sir.

3 Q

All right.

Now, is that true at all times?

So that includes up and to

4 that the crimes were committed up until the
5 A

That is correct.

6 Q

All right.

from the date
until today?

You did speak with the district attorneys

7 in connection with your testimony at the preliminary
8 hearing, correct?
9 A
10 Q

Yes, sir, I did.
All right.

Now, having referenced I guess a tertiary

11 role with the -- in connection with the crimes, would you
12 or would you describe for us what your involvement was in
13 connection with the Ryan Hughes murders?
14 A

I was

15 Q

In your capacity as a patrol officer with the San

16 Bernardino Sheriff's Department.
17 A

Yes, sir.

I was providing security at a perimeter

18 post, maintaining the level of security needed to keep
19 people from breaching the area and obstructing with the
20 investigation.
21 Q

Now, was this up close, this security that you were

22 providing, was this up close to the Ryans' home?
23 A

No.

It was approximately a quarter of a mile away.

24 Q

All right.

And can you -- do you recall more

25 specifically where you were providing that security?
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1 A

Yes, sir.

I was at the intersection of Payton Drive

2 and English Road.
3 Q

Okay.

And who assigned you there?

4 A

I was assigned by the homicide division.

5 Q

And do you recall specifically who gave you that

6 assignment?

7 A

I was transferred to me via the radio dispatch.

8 Q

Via the radio dispatch?

9 A

Yes, sir.

10 Q

And do you recall the date that you were given that

11 duty?
12 A

By what I remember reading in my notes, I believe it

13 was the 5th of June.
14 Q

That's a Sunday I'll represent to you.

Does that sound

15 correct?
16 A

I -- I have no idea, sir.

17 Q

And you referenced some notes.

18 A

I wouldn't remember that far --

19 Q

Do you -- excuse me.

20 Okay.

It was June the 5th.

I didn't mean to interrupt.
Let me represent to you that

21 June the 5th, 1983 was a Sunday.
22 that you have.

You referenced some notes

Did you bring those notes with you?

23 A

Yes, sir, I did.

24 Q

All right.

And have you had those notes in your

25 possession since the day they were created?
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1 A

No, sir, I have not.

2 Q

All right.

How is it that you came upon the notes that

3 you appear to have in front of you?
4 A

They were faxed to my office via the United States

5 Attorney General's Office.
6 Q

United States or the State of California, do you

7 recall?
8 A

I believe -- I'm sorry -- State Attorney General's

9 Office, State of California.
10

Q

Okay.

And when were those faxed to you, sir?

11 A

I believe they were faxed over a week ago.

12

One week ago.

Q

Okay.

And do you know who faxed those

13 to you?
14 A

I believe Deputy Attorney General Holly Wilkens faxed

15 them to me or she directed them to have them faxed.
16 Q

All right.

Now, did you provide any security services

17 other than on June the 5th, 1983 in connection with the Ryan
18 Hughes -- the crimes involving the Ryan family and the
19 Hughes son?
20 A

Yes, sir, I did.

21 Q

Okay.

22 A

There was approximately two to four weeks of security

How many days?

23 around that residence in that particular area due to the
24 nature of the crime, and as a patrol deputy, we were
25 assigned rotating shifts to maintain to make sure that no
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lone made contact with the house.
2 Q

With the Ryan house?

3 A

That is correct.

4 Q

All right.

Were you at all times located down at

5 Payton and English Road?
6 A

Not at all times, no.

7 Q

Okay.

8

Do you recall where else you were
MS. WILKENS:

Your Honor, I'm going to object

9 under 403.
10

THE COURT:

I don't have a question yet.

11

MR. ALEXANDER:

Well, I'm trying to find out what

12 the man did, your Honor, in connection with this because we
13 haven't had access to him, and I -- it's somewhat unknown,
14 and that's all I'm trying to do.
15

MS. WILKENS:

Your Honor, it's my understanding

16 that this would relate to interviewing Canyon Corral Bar
17 patrons, and we're getting so far afield.

We're getting

18 into what the deputy did over several weeks and what he did
19 with respect to the murders, and I thought we were going to
20 inquire about the bar patrons.
21

MR. ALEXANDER:

I am going to, but I'm trying to

22 find out if he did anything else relating to the crime since
23 we have the gentleman here.
24

THE COURT:

Let's focus on the bar.

25 \\
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1 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
2 Q

Okay.

In addition to providing -- let me complete

3 that -- at least that time frame.

After, what did you say,

4 two to three weeks from the 5th of June, did you stop
5 providing -- you yourself being a part of providing security
6 for the
THE COURT:

7

Let's focus on the bar.

8 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
9 Q

Okay.

Mr. Ward, did you -- as part of your

10 responsibilities as a patrol officer, were you -- withdraw
11 that.
12

Were you as part of your responsibilities as a patrol

13 officer assigned any duties relating to the Canyon Corral
14 Bar?

r

15 A

Yes, sir, I was.

16 Q

All right.

17 A

One of the homicide detectives.

18 Q

Do you recall --

19 A

Tim Wilson I believe was the name of the detective.

20 Q

Tim Wilson?

21 A

I believe that was his name.

22 Q

And he was a homicide detective?

23 A

That is correct.

24 Q

All right.

25 A

He directed me to drive to the Canyon Corral Bar and

And who assigned you those duties?

And what did Mr. Wilson direct you to do?
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1 make contact with the manager and one of the bar maids we
2 knew to be working there at that time and ascertain if
3 they'd found -- or, excuse me -- if they had seen anyone in
4 the bar during the night before that was not a local.
5 Q

And did you carry out those directions?

6 A

Yes, sir, I did.

7 Q

Were there specific individuals that Mr. -- that

8 Detective Wilson asked you to interview?
9 A

That would have been the bar maid that was there at

10 that time and the manager.

There was only two of them at

11 that time of the evening.
12 Q

Well,

let me ask you.

Did he tell you "Go interview

13 these two specific people or did he just go down there and
14 tell you to interview whoever was at the bar?
15 A

He asked me to interview the bar made and the manager.

16 Q

Do you know how he got those persons' names?

17 A

Well, it was common knowledge.

We knew the people that

18 worked in that bar.
19 Q

Had you been in that bar?

20 A

Several times, yes, sir.

21 Q

All right.

And had you been in that bar as a result of

22 routine patrol to check out if everything was all right in
23 the bar?
24 A

Yes, sir.

25 Q

All right.

Prior to June the 5th, when was the last

Echo Reporting,
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1 time you were in that bar checking out to see that
2 everything was copacetic?
3 A

It would have been that weekend.

4 Q

That very weekend?

5 A

Yes, sir.

6 Q

Do you recall when on that weekend?

7 A

Well, I was working the swing shift from 3:00 p.m.

8 until 11:00 p.m., and so it would have been during any of
9 the Friday or Saturday nights, any given time.
10 Q

So, best of your recollection, sir, you were -- you

11 made a stop at the Canyon Corral Bar Friday night would you
12 say or Saturday night or both?
13 A

It could have been.

I don't recall at this time.

It

14 was common practice to stop into the bar just to make sure
15 that there was no fights going on or if everything was all
16 right.
17 Q

All right.

And when you say you don't recall, it could

18 have been both nights, Friday and Saturday?
19 A

Yes, sir, could have been.

20 Q

All right.

Now, when you went to the Canyon Corral

21 Bar, would you report in to the West End Station that that's
22 where you were going?
23 A

Yes, sir.

24 Q

All right.

And would they then record that on the

25 daily log?
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1 A

It would be on the log, yes, sir.

2 Q

It would be?

Okay.

And would you also report when you

3 were leaving the Canyon Corral Bar?
4 A

Yes, sir.

5 Q

All right.

6 A

Yes, sir, it should be.

7 Q

All right.

And that would also be on the daily log?

Do you recall, sir, on either -- for either

8 Friday or Saturday night, June the 4th -- I'm sorry -- June
9 the 3rd and June the 4th, calling in and reporting that you

10 were making a stop at the Canyon Corral Bar?
11

MS. WILKENS:

Your Honor, I'm going to object for

12 the lack of foundation.

We haven't established whether or

13 not Deputy Ward was even on duty, and we're getting into a
14 series of questions relating -15

THE COURT:

Overruled.

16 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
17 Q

Did you understand my question?

18 A

Yes, sir, I did.

19 Q

Okay.

I don't recall, sir.

Now, as I understand it -- well, I guess I don't

20 understand it.

The direction from Detective Wilson was to

21 interview anybody at the bar or those two specific people
22 that you interviewed?
23 A

I took the direct order from Detective Wilson as to

24 interview the two people that were in the bar because at the
25 time I was going in there, there would not be a lot of
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1 people in the bar, and I assumed it would be the bar manager
2 and the bar maid that worked inside.
3 Q

You just assumed that?

4 A

Yes, sir.

5 Q

But if there were more people in that bar at that time,

6 you would have interviewed them also,

any more employees, is

7 that fair?

8

MS. WILKENS:

9

THE COURT:

Objection.
Leading.

Speculation.

Sustained.

10 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
11 Q

Well, based on what Mr. -- Detective Wilson said to

12 you, was it your understanding, sir, that you should
13 interview any of the bar employees who might be present in
14 the bar at that time?
15 A

Yes, sir.

16 Q

All right.

Now, do your notes that you have in front

17 of you, sir, reflect the direction from Mr. -- from
18 Detective Wilson to you with regard to going and conducting
19 interviews at the bar?
20 A

Yes, sir, I believe they do.

21 Q

All right.

Can you turn to the page and read to us

22 what it -- what your notes say?
23

MR. ALEXANDER:

Maybe we ought to mark these, your

24 Honor, for clarity of the record.

These would be

25 Petitioner's next in order.
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1

THE CLERK:

34 is next in order.

2

MR. ALEXANDER:

3

THE COURT:

4

MR. ALEXANDER:

May I approach, your Honor --

You may, and you can
-- just so I can see what we are

5 marking?
6

THE COURT:

get a sticker.

7

MR. ALEXANDER:

I'm going to mark, your Honor, the

8 entire set of -- of these various copies.
THE WITNESS:

9

No, this is the fax transmittal,

10 cover -- from the Attorney General's Office, this is the
11 statement in the preliminary hearing.
12

MR. ALEXANDER:

13

THE WITNESS:

14

THE COURT:

15

MR. ALEXANDER:

16

THE WITNESS:

Your statement?
My statement, yes, sir.

That should be marked separately.
Yes.
And this would be my supplemental

17 report.
18 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
19 Q

Okay.

Now, you mentioned some notes.

When you say

20 notes, what are you referring to?
21 A

These would be the notes that were transcribed.

22 Q

When you say these, is this your supplemental report?

23 A

That is my supplemental report, yes, sir.

24 Q

Okay.

And were you sent the supplemental report by Ms.

25 Wilkens approximately a week ago?
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1 A

Yes,

I was.

2 Q

And then in addition, there is another fax transmission

3 cover sheet -- well, that just relates to your testimony.
4 So we'll put that aside.
5

THE COURT:

So to summarize the Exhibit 34 --

6

MR. ALEXANDER:

Consists of five -- five pages,

7 your Honor.
8

THE COURT:

Uh-huh.

9

MR. ALEXANDER:

The first of which is a fax

10 transmission cover sheet dated August the 16th, 2004 to Mr.
11 Ward from Ms. Wilkens and then a subpoena attached to it
12 dated -- also dated that date.

Now, that's a two-page

13 document, the subpoena, and then a two-page document that is
14 the supplemental report.
15

THE COURT:

Okay.

16

MR. ALEXANDER:

I would propose to mark all that

17 as Exhibit 34, your Honor.
18

THE COURT:

Why don't we mark the supplemental

19 report separately.
20

MR. ALEXANDER:

21

THE COURT:

22

MR. ALEXANDER:

23

THE COURT:

24

MS. WILKENS:

All right.

That would be 35.
Okay.

35.

35, and then the testimony 36?
Right.

And the testimony is in

25 volume 25 of the motions transcript that's the record
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1 already before the Court, and also the supplemental report I
2 believe has already been marked as a Respondent's exhibit.
3

THE COURT:

4

MS. WILKENS:

Respondent's what number?
I don't have it available, your

5 Honor.
THE COURT:

6

Okay.

We'll double mark it.

So we

7 have 34 and 35 and then the transcript is already in the
8 motions?
MS. WILKENS:

9

Yes, your Honor.

It's page -- it's

10 page 1687 through 1703, and I believe it's volume 25 of the
11 motions reporter's transcript.
12

THE COURT:

Thank you.

13 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
14 Q

Just so we're clear, Mr. Ward, there are no handwritten

15 notes of yours when you reference notes?
16 A

No, sir, there are not.

17 Q

All right.

Thank you.

Now, independent of what we

18 have marked as Exhibit 35, which is the supplemental report,
19 do you have a recollection of the -- of what you did at the
20 Canyon Corral Bar on June the 5th, 1983?
21 A

Yes, sir, I remember what I did.

22

You do remember that?

Q

23 A

Yes, sir.

24

Okay.

Q

Now, is June the 5th

-

- is June the 5th, 1983

25 the only date on which you conducted interviews of the - - of
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1 any employees of the Canyon Corral Bar in connection with

2 the Ryan Hughes crimes?
3 A

Yes, sir, that is the only date.

4 Q

Now, on that same date, the 5th, did you also drive

5 some patrons or employees, either,
6 up to the Ryan -

of the Canyon Corral Bar

- near the Ryan home?

7 A

Yes, sir, I did.

8 Q

All right.

And do you recall the name of those two

9 individuals?
10 A

Based on the notes that I reviewed, McNeal.

I think it

11 was Virginia McNeal.

12 Q

Virginia McNeal?

13 A

That would have been the bar made, and I -- at this

14 point in time I don't recall the name of the other
15 individual.
16 Q

Was it a man or a woman?

17 A

I believe it was a male.

18 Q

All right.

19 A

No, sir.

20 Q

Sound familiar?

21 A

No~

22 Q

Now, directing your attention to Exhibit 35 for a

And does the name Lester Land ring a bell?

sir, it does not.

23 moment, Ms. Killian was the manager of the bar, correct?
24 A

Yes, sir, that's correct.

25 Q

And you knew her from your various visits to patrol the
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1 bar?
2 A

Yes, sir.

3 Q

All right.

And -- but you didn't know whether she'd

4 actually be down there on that day, but she happened to be,
5 correct?
6 A

It was a general assumption she would open the bar up.

7 So I expected her to be there.
8 Q

All right.

And Ms. McNeal, now, she was also at the

9 bar, correct?
10 A

Yes, sir.

11 Q

All right.

But you told me there were two people that

12 you drove up to bring to Detective Wilson, correct?
13 A

Yes, sir.

14 Q

Are those two people different than Ms. Killian or Ms.

15 McNeal?
16 A

I did not drive Ms. Killian to the scene where

17 Detective Wilson interviewed them.

Ms. McNeal I did drive.

18 Q

Ms. McNeal you did drive?

19 A

Yes, sir.

20 Q

And had you already interviewed her when you drove her

21 up there?
22 A

It was not an interview, sir.

It was a gathering of

23 information.
24 Q

Fair enough.

Is that a term of art within the

25 Sheriff's Department, a gathering of information versus an
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1 interview?
2 A

Yes, sir.

3 Q

Okay.

4 A

Basically an interview would be conducted in a

What's the difference between the two?

5 controlled environment.

It would be very lengthy depending

6 on the type of interview that's used, with having enough
7 knowledge what you're trying to gain the answers to.

My

8 basic premise and my orders were to gather some information,
9 find out if the bar maid or the manager had seen anyone who
10 did not frequent the bar unusually, someone who just dropped
11 in the night before.

If I was to obtain any information on

12 that positively, then to transport them up to the detective
13 so that he could interview them further.
14 Q

But you only transported Ms. McNeal, not Ms. Killian,

15 correct?
16 A

I did not transport Ms. Killian, no, I did not.

17 Q

All right.

Do you know did anybody else transport her

18 up to Detective Wilson?
19 A

Not to my knowledge, no.

20 Q

All right.

Now, you're certain there were two people

21 transported up to Detective Wilson?
22 A

I'm not certain, no, sir.

23 Q

You're not certain?

24 A

No, sir.

25

Q

Okay.

Do you recall your testimony at the preliminary

Echo Reporting, Inc.

22
1 hearing in which you indicated there were two people?
2 A

If I could review this to refresh my memory.

3 Q

Sure.

4 along.

Well, let me see if I can help you to move this

It might help you just to refresh your recollection

5 if you would direct your attention to page 1698,
6 specifically, line five.
7 A

Yes.

8 Q

You see where it says:
IIQ

9

When the interview between Mr.

10

Wilson and these two people was

11

completed, did you drive the people back

12

to Canyon Corral Bar?

13

A

14

Yes, sir, I did. II

Does that now refresh your recollection that you

15 drove -16 A

Yes.

17 Q

-- two people up?

18 A

Yes, I did.

19 Q

All right.

Do you have any information about -- other

20 than your belief that you transported Ms. McNeal who the
21 other person was?
22 A

The other person, the best of my recollection, would

23 have been the male.

They hired him as a bouncer, and I

24 transported him up there also.
25 Q

Does the name Bill Betancourt ring a bell?
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1 A

No.

2 Q

Bob Betancourt?

3 A

I beg your pardon?

4 Q

Bob Betancourt, is that name familiar to you?

5 A

No, sir, it is not.

6 Q

And I think I already asked you about Lester Land, that

7 name is not familiar?
8 A

No, sir, it is not.

9 Q

Al Ward, sometimes known as Big Al Ward?

10 A

No, sir.

11 Q

All right.

So, in short, you can't tell us who you

12 drove up to see Detective Wilson, the male at least?
13 A

No, I do not.

14 Q

You cannot?

15 A

I cannot, sir.

16 Q

Thank you.

Now, directing your attention back to

17 Exhibit 35, you have in the instance of Ms. Killian and in
18 the instance of Ms. McNeal statements in quotes in both
19 instances.

Do you see that?

20 A

Yes, sir, I do.

21 Q

What's the significance of your putting it in quotes?

22 A

To indicate they were statements from the people that I

23 spoke to.
24

Q

But does it also indicate that that's exactly verbatim

25 what they said?
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1 A

As best of my knowledge, yes,

2 Q

Okay.

it would be.

So it's not just that it's statements from them,

3 but it's precisely what they said?
4 A

Yes, sir.

5 Q

Okay.

6 A

Yes, sir.

7 Q

All right.

Now, at least that's what you intended, correct?

Did you take written notes before you

8 prepared this report?
9 A

Yes, sir, I did.

10 Q

Okay.

And what happened to those notes?

11 A

Those notes, I have no idea where they're at, sir.

12 Q

What was your - - what did you do with them?

13 A

Protocol, my notebook would be stored for approximately

14 60 to 90 days, sometimes six months depending on the
15 circumstances.

Some of the notebooks we would turn in to

16 the investigators if they deemed them necessary.

This one I

17 don't recall.

18 Q

You don't know what you did with it?

19 A

No, sir, I do not.

20 Q

Okay.

Was it your practice to make a copy of your

21 notes before you turned them in?
22 A

No, it was not.

23 Q

And when you turned them in, where did you turn them in

24 or to whom?
25 A

If the notes had to be turned in, they were turned in
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1 directly to a detective that would request them.

Otherwise,

2 the notes would be destroyed after they were transferred
3 over to written copy, either typed or taped over.
4 Q

Now, with regard to Ms. Killian -- let's start with

5 her -- what you have in quotes is not the totality of what
6 she said to you, is that correct?
7 A

No, it is not.

It's a synopsis.

8 Q

So then this isn't verbatim what she said to you, it's

9 just the sum of the statements that she said to you but not
10 necessarily in this order, correct?
11 A

That would be correct, yes.

12 Q

All right.

Is it fair to characterize this as your

13 summary of what she said to you?
14 A

Yes.

15 Q

All right.

16 A

Yes, sir.

17 Q

All right.

18 A

It's an additional report.

19 Q

Addition to what?

20 A

In addition to the initial investigation.

21 Q

By you?

22 A

Yes, sir.

23 Q

So there's a report by you prior to this supplemental

And would that also be true of Ms. McNeal?

What is a supplemental report?

24 report, is that correct?
25 A

I'm sorry.

I don't understand what you're asking.
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1 Q

Excuse me for not being more clear.

There is an

2 initial report to which this report is a supplement?
3 A

That is correct.

4 Q

All right.

And you -- you prepared that initial report

5 also, correct?
6 A

No, sir, I did not.

7 Q

I see.

Tell me, if you know, who prepared the initial

8 report?
9 A

No, sir, I do not.

10 Q

Have you ever seen the initial report?

11 A

No, I have not.

12 Q

Why did you call this a supplemental report?

13 A

Because my assignment was directly related to this

14 investigation, and every supplemental report or any
15 information that's garnered and additionally added to the
16 original report uses that report, and everything is
17 considered a supplemental report, supplemental to the
18 initial investigation.
19 Q

Have you ever seen the initial report?

20 A

No, I have not, sir.

21 Q

All right.

You prepared the report on -- it's hard to

22 read, but I think it's June the 7th, is that correct?
23 A
24

Q

It was typed on June the 7th, sir.
Well, let me ask you just procedurally, do you dictate

25 the report and then it's typed from a dictating machine or
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1 do you write it out longhand?
2 A

What do you do?

Initially, supplemental reports would be handwritten

3 and then handed to a secretary to type over.

4 Q

Okay.

And was that somebody at the West End Station?

5 A

Yes, sir, it would be.

6 Q

Was that one of the dispatchers who would do the

7 typing?

8 A

It could be.

9 Q

Sorry?

10 A

It could be, sir.

11 Q

What was your practice?

12 A

I'm sorry?

13 Q

What was the practice?

14 A

The practice was whatever dispatcher/secretary was

15 available, they would do the typing of the reports.

There

16 was one secretary that was assigned to the Detective Bureau.
17 I don't know if this was the one.

I couldn't tell you that,

18 sorry.
19 Q

Okay.

But whoever it was, that person's initials were

20 JMB?
21 A

That's correct.

22 Q

All right.

And were there -- okay.

Now, it says

23 reviewed by, and I can't tell who reviewed this report.

Do

24 those initials mean anything to you?
25 A

No, sir.

I -- I couldn't tell you who they are.
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1 Q

And you have no recollection of who reviewed it?

2 A

No, sir, I do not.

3 Q

Okay.

Now, during the course of your interview with --

4 I'm sorry -- your gathering of information with Ms. Killian,
5 did you ask her who else was in the bar that evening?
6 A

I asked her if she'd seen anyone other than the normal

7 customers that frequented the bar that evening.
8 Q

Yeah.

9 that

That -- that wasn't my question.

that you may -- that you asked that.

I understand
I simply want

10 to know did you ask the names of any other employees of the
11 bar or patrons of the bar who were in the bar the evening of
12 July the 4th into the early morning of the 5th?
13 A

I don't recall.

14 Q

Okay.

Is this the only - - the words in parentheses

15 here the only thing you have a recollection about regarding
16 that evening, that gathering of information on Sunday, June
17 the 5th?
18 A

Yes, sir.

19 Q

You don't recall anything else?

20 A

No, sir.

21 Q

Okay.

Now, directing your attention to Ms. Killian's

22 statement, did she say to you that there were two visits by
23 these men to the bar or one visit?
24

Let me withdraw that.

Do you have an independent recollection, apart from

25 whatever it says here, of whether or not Ms. Killian
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1 recalled one or two visits by the three men to the bar that
2 evening?
3 A

Not independently, no.

4 Q

Okay.

Is there anything that you see here that --

5 under Ms. Killian that refreshes your recollection as to
6 whether or not the men came into the bar or she saw the men
7 in the bar on two occasions?
8 A

No, sir, not on these notes.

9 Q

Okay.

And you have no independent knowledge of that,

10 correct?
11 A

No, sir, I do not.

12 Q

All right.

So if the men made two visits into the bar,

13 you don't know whether this was the first visit or the
14 second visit?
15 A

I would have no idea, no, sir.

16 Q

All right.

And I take it that suspects one, two, and

17 three, again, is information that Ms. Killian provided to
18 you?
19 A

Yes, sir.

20 Q

And that's your summary of what she said?

21 A

Yes, sir.

22 Q

All right.

23 A

No, sir.

24 Q

Is there a reason why it's not in quotes?

25 A

It's a generic description.

That's not in quotes?
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1 Q

Okay.

So it's not a -- well, it is something she told

2 you, though?
3 A

Yes, sir.

4 Q

All right.

Now, let's go to Ms. McNeal -- I'm sorry.

5 Before we jump to Ms. Mcneal, have you ever spoke to Ms.
6 Killian subsequent to the gathering of information on June
-,

75th, 1983 until today?
8 A

Not since that time, no, sir.

9 Q

Okay.

10 all right.

All right.

Now let's move down to Ms. McNeal,

Now, Ms. McNeal's statement, again, is a summary

11 on your part, correct?
12 A

Yes, sir.

13 Q

All right.

And she didn't necessarily say these things

14 in the order, but this is your best effort to put down what
15 she did say?
16 A

Yes, sir.

17 Q

All right.

Do you recall how long the interview with

18 Ms. McNeal went?
19 A

No,

I don't know.

20 Q

Do you recall how long you were there at the bar

21 interviewing Ms. Killian and Ms. McNeal?
22 A

It was a short time.

It wasn't very long.

I'd say at

23 best 15, 20 minutes.
24 Q

Fifteen or 20 minutes for both of them?

25 A

I believe so, yes, sir.
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1 Q

All right.

Did you ask Ms. McNeal whether or not she

2 recalled the names of anybody else who'd been at the bar the
3 prior night or
4 A

No, sir.

5 Q

- - into the early morning?

6 A

No, sir, I had not.

7 Q

Is there a reason you did not?

8 A

I wouldn't know what names to ask.

9 Q

No, but did you ask her if she knew of any names of

10 people who were also there that evening?
11 A

No, sir.

12 Q

Did you put a sign up in the bar or anything to -- that

13 anybody who was in the bar that evening should contact the
14 Sheriff's Department?
15 A

No, sir, I did not.

16 Q

Is there a reason you didn't do that?

17 A

I was not directed to.

18 Q

And you -- but you also certainly weren't directed by

19 Detective Wilson to ask every question you asked.

He just

20 told you to go gather information, correct?
21 A

Yes, sir.

22 Q

All right.

Thank you.

Now, apart from preparing this

23 report, did you have any discussions with any of your
24 superiors, Detective -- withdraw that.
25

Would Detective Wilson be considered a superior of
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1 yours?
2 A

Not a superior, no.

3 Q

Okay.

4 A

He's in a different division, yes, sir.

5 Q

All right.

He's really in a different division?

Did you discuss your gathering of

6 information with anybody else who was a superior of yours?
7 A

No, I did not.

8 Q

All right.

And did you discuss with Mr. Wilson --

9 Detective Wilson, the gathering of information that -- that
10 you conducted at the Canyon Corral Bar?
11 A

No, I did not.

12 Q

Did Mr. Wilson then interview --

13 A

I think I did discuss with Detective Wilson at the time

14 I transported them over to his location that I had obtained
15 this information, and then he advised me to put it down in a
16 supplemental report, and that was the end of the
17 conversation.
18 Q

Did -- did Detective -- was there a reason you

19 brought -- or you believe you brought Ms. McNeal up to
20 Detective Wilson but not Ms. Killian?
21 A

I was directed to.

22 Q

And how did that direction come about?

23 A

Probably by radio.

24 Q

Do you recall?

25 A

I would have to say by radio.

That would be the only
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1 logical conclusion.

We didn't have cell phones, and I was

2 in contact with the detective division that way.
3 Q

Okay.

And that was a radio from West End Station or

4 from Detective Wilson directly, do you know?
5 A

I would contact him directly.

6 Q

Okay.

So when you were done -- is it your testimony

7 that when you were done interviewing these two people, you
8 then contacted Detective Wilson?
9 A
10 Q

Yes, sir.
All right.

And he directed you to bring Ms. McNeal up

11 to him?
12 A

Yes, sir.

13 Q

All right.

Did you stay around after you brought them

14 up there, stay with the two people?
15 A

Yes, I did.

16 Q

All right.

17 that.

And were you there while -- did -- withdraw

Did Detective Wilson talk to both the gentlemen and,

18 assuming it's Ms. McNeal, Ms. McNeal or whatever woman it
19 was?
20 A

Yes, sir.

21 Q

All right.

22 A

Not within earshot.

23 Q

Not within earshot?

24 A

No, sir.

25 Q

Okay.

And were you present during that?

Did you go back to your security job?
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1 A

No.

I remained at my vehicle with one of the

2 individuals while he took the other one away and spoke with
3 them and then exchanged interviews with both people and then
4 directed me to drive them back to the Canyon Corral.
5 Q

And how long did that interview by Detective Wilson

6 last?
7 A

I really couldn't tell you.

8 Q

All right.

When you went back to the Canyon Corral

9 Bar, did you go in to see if there was anybody else there
10 who -- who was an employee of the bar?
11 A

No, sir.

12 Q

Did you simply drop the two people off or did you

13 actually go in with them?
14 A

No.

I dropped them off and then returned back to my

15 post.
16 Q

All right.

And is that when you picked up security --

17 your security job?
18

MS. WILKENS:

19

MR. ALEXANDER:

Objection.
That was a very poor question, and

20 I apologize.
21

THE WITNESS:

I understand what you're saying.

22 Yeah, I -- I returned
23 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
24 Q

Well, let me restate --

25 A

-- back to my perimeter to -- to security --
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THE COURT:

1

Let him -- let him rephrase.

2 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
3 Q

Let me restate the question.

4 A

I'm sorry.

5 Q

When you went back up to the area of either the Ryan

6 house or -- or Payton and English Road, did you resume your
7 security responsibilities?
8 A

I believe I did, yes.

9 Q

Do you recall or are you guessing?

10 A

I believe I did.

11 Q

All right.

Now, did Detective Wilson ask you -- or

12 relate to you the information that he'd received from either
13 Ms. Killian or the gentleman who you brought up there?
14 A

No, sir, he did not.

15 Q

I may have to ask that again because I misspoke.

Did

16 Detective Wilson ask you to make a report of what Ms. McNeal
17 or whoever the woman was that you drove up there and the
18 gentleman of what they had said to -- to him?
19 A

I don't recall.

20 Q

Okay.

21 A

No, I do not.

22 Q

As I -- am I correct that apart from your security

Do you know whether he prepared such a report?

23 responsibilities, you had no further involvement after these
24 interviews and driving the people up to Detective Wilson in
25 connection with the investigation relating to the
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1 Ryan/Hughes crimes?
2 A

That is correct.

3 Q

All right.

Do you have any information, sir, as to

4 what was done with regard to the information about the three
5 men in the bar by the San Bernardino Sheriff's Department?
6 A

No, sir, I do not.
MS. WILKENS:

7

Objection.

Vague.

8 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
9 Q

Do you know whether

10

THE COURT:

Overruled.

11 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
12 Q

-- or not there was any further pursuit of trying to

13 identify who those men were?
14 A

I do not, sir.

15 Q

All right.

Is it correct -- let me represent to you

16 that an arrest warrant for Kevin Cooper was issued on June
17 the 9th, Thursday of that week, the 5th being a Sunday.

Are

18 you aware of any further efforts to investigate whether or
19 not the men who were seen in the bar as -- as told you by
20 Ms. Killian and Ms. McNeal was pursued?
21

MS. WILKENS:

22

THE COURT:

23

THE WITNESS:

Objection.
Overruled.

Asked and answered.
If you know.

No, sir, I do not.

24 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
25 Q

Okay.

Mr. Ward, after you testified -- which I'll
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1 represent to you was on May the 14th,
14thr 1984 -- can you
2 confirm that from Exhibit 36?
3 A

I don't
donrt believe I have a date on my copy,
cOPYr sir.

4 Q

All right.

Well,r maybe I can provide a more
Well

5 complete -- you -- you don't
donrt have a cover sheet that has a
6 date?
7 A

NOr sir
No,
sir,r I do not.

Would you stipulate,
stipulate r Ms.

MR. ALEXANDER:

8

inquire, your Honor -- that the date
9 Wilkens -- if I might inquirer
10 of his testimony was May the 14th?
11

MS. WILKENS:

12

THE COURT:

13

MR. ALEXANDER:

Yes,r your Honor.
Yes
Thank you.
1984.

14 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
15 Q

Now,r in connection with that testimony,
Now
testimonYr did you have

16 your notes at that time,
timer your written notes?
17 A
18 Q

I believe I did.
. You believe you did?

19 A

Yes,r sir.
Yes

20 Q

All right.

And were those in the possession of the

21 District Attorney or did you have them yourself?
22 A

I hand-carried my own notes in.

23 Q

Okay.

And did you provide those notes to -- a copy of

24 those notes to the District Attorney?
25 A

I believe they already had a copy.
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1 Q

Of your actual handwritten notes?

2 A

NO I

3 Q

Okay.

4 A

11m sorry.

5 Q

By the term notes

6 A

11m referring to the report I

7 Q

Okay.

I did not have my handwritten notes

8 term notes

Well

Well
l

that/s my question.

l

l

nOI

sir.

You -- you

you/re referring to the report?

l

yes.

my question is more specific as to the

l

and that is in connection with preparation for

9 your testimony during the preliminary hearing on May the
10 14thl 1984

1

did you have your handwritten notes at that

11 time?
12 A

NO

13 Q

Had they been destroyed or do you know?

14 A

I don/t know

15 Q

All right.

16 A

NO I

17 Q

When/s the last time you recall speaking with him?

18 A

Probably before I left the San Bernardino Sheriff/s

I

sir

sir

l

l

I did not.

I

sir.

Do you know where Mr. Wilson is todaYI sir?

I do not.

19 Department and went to work for Pomona PD.
20 Q

All right.

Just so I understand where you were

21 then 1/11 be concluding

I

l

and

how long were you with the City of

22 Pomona?
23 A

Five years.

24 Q

All right.

And that takes us up to about 189 1 is that

25 correct?
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1 A

1989.

2 Q

And then where -- where were you?

3

MS. WILKENS:

Objection, your Honor, 403.

4

THE COURT:

5

MR. ALEXANDER:

Pardon me?

What's the question?

I simply want to know when the

6 gentleman left the area of San Bernardino an it environs.
7

THE COURT:

When Tim

8

MR. ALEXANDER:

9

THE COURT:

He did.
Wilson did?

10

MR. ALEXANDER:

11

MS. WILKENS:

When -- when Mr. Ward did.
Well, the question was when he left

12 Pomona Police Department, and we were getting into a -- a
13 resume.
14

THE COURT:

15

THE WITNESS:

Okay.

So when did you leave?

I left the area in 1989.

16 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
17 Q

And then where did you go?

18 A

I went to - -

19

MS. WILKENS:

Objection.

20

MR. ALEXANDER:

21

THE COURT:

Relevance, 403.

Well, let me

Getting a little far afield after

22 that.
23 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
24 Q

Subsequent to -- I think maybe I've cleared this up,

25 but you moved out of the area of San Bernardino County or
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1 any adjacent counties, correct, after 1989?
2 A

Yes, sir.

3 Q

All right.

And you had no further involvement with the

4 San Bernardino Sheriff's Department after that date,
5 correct?
6 A

That is correct.

7

MR. ALEXANDER:

That's all the questions I have,

8 Mr. Ward, and thank you very much for the long drive down,
9 and I hope it's a safe drive back.
10

THE COURT:

11

MS. WILKENS:

12

THE COURT:

Thank you.
No questions, your Honor.
All right.

Thank you.

You're

13 excused.
14
15

(The witness was excused.)
MR. ALEXANDER:

Your Honor, I would move into

16 evidence the report, Exhibit -- and Exhibit 34.

I don't

17 know about the --

(~

18

THE COURT:

34 is the subpoena.

19

MR. ALEXANDER:

20

MS. WILKENS:

21

MR. ALEXANDER:

I'm sorry.

If that's

Your Honor -the subpoena, I don't mind

22 that.
23

MS. WILKENS:

-- with respect to the transcript,

24 it's testimony from a Hitch hearing.

It's part of the

25 record that's already before the Court.
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MR. ALEXANDER:

1

I didn/t move for that.

I just

2 moved for
3

THE COURT:

Okay.

4

MR. ALEXANDER:

5

THE COURT:

You want the report --

Yes.
that has the interview of Killian

6 and -7

MR. ALEXANDER:

8

THE COURT:

Yes

l

your Honor.

the -- yes.

That/s received.

And

9 what number is that?
10

MR. ALEXANDER:

11

THE CLERK:

35.

12

THE COURT:

35.

35

1

your Honor.

It/s two-page document

I

and

13 that/s received.
14

MR. ALEXANDER:

15

THE COURT:

Thank you very much

I

your Honor.

I think it/s technically already in in

16 one of the other -MS. WILKENS:

17

Yeah.

I apologize for not having

18 the number.
19

THE COURT:

20 respect to him.

WeIll keep it through for ease with

All right.

And now we can call Mr.

21 Shephard.
22

MS. WILKENS:

Yes.

We/re getting Mr. Shepherd.

23 He/ll be here momentarily.

24
25

(Pause. )

II
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1

CORNELIUS SHEPHARD - PETITIONER'S WITNESS - SWORN

2

THE CLERK:

Please state your name and spell your

3 first and last name for the record.
THE WITNESS:

4

My name is Cornelius Shephard,

c-o-

5 R-N-E-L-I-U-S S-H-E-P-H-A-R-D.
THE CLERK:

6

Thank you.
DIRECT EXAMINATION

7

8 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
9 Q

Good afternoon, Mr. Shephard.

Was there a period of

10 time, sir, in which you were employed by the Chino
11 Institute -- Institution for Men?
12 A

Yes.

13 Q

All right.

14 A

From October 1973 to November 1989.

15 Q

And were you - - did you leave voluntarily?

16 A

Yes.

17 Q

All right.

And what years, sir?

And then what did you do next?

18

MS. WILKENS:

19

MR. ALEXANDER:

Objection.

403, relevance.

Well, I need to find out to see

20 whether it's relevant or not.
21

THE COURT:

Sustained.

22 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
23 Q

Did your subsequent employment involve any work with

24 the Department of Corrections by the State of California?
25 A

I don't quite understand.
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1 Q

All right.

I want to know after you left Chino in

2 November 19 -- Chino Prison I'll call it in November 1989,
3 did you have any further employment with the Department of
4 Corrections?
5 A

Yes.

6 Q

All right.

7 A

I was an associate warden at Pelican Bay State Prison.

8 Q

And during what period of time?

9 A

From November 1989 until February 1995.
MR. ALEXANDER:

10
11

And what was that?

One moment, your Honor.

(Pause.)

12 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
13 Q

Did you retire in 1995?

14 A

No.

15 Q

Did you remain employed by the Department of

16 Corrections?
17 A

Yes, I did.

18 Q

And what did you do after Pelican Bay?

19 A

I went to the Northern California Women's Facility as a

20 chief deputy warden 1995.
21 Q

Until when?

22 A

Until November 200 - - November 2001.

23 Q

Okay.

24 A

Northern California Women's Facility.

25 Q

Yes.

Where was that, did you say, the women's prison?

Where?
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1 A

In Stockton.

2 Q

Okay.

Now, either at Pelican Bay or at the Northern

3 California Women's Prison, did you have any involvement at

4 all with the Ryan/Hughes crimes?
5 A

No.

6 Q

Okay.

7 Men,

did you have -- have you had any responsibilities in

Subsequent to your leaving Chino Institution for

8 connection -- or any involvement in connection with the

9 Ryan/Hughes crimes?

10 A

I really don't understand what you're asking.

11

I want to know once you left Chino Prison

Q

12 A

Uh-huh.

13

- - all right,

Q

- -

did you ever have any further involvement

14 in connection with the Ryan/Hughes crimes?
15 A

No.

16 Q

All right.

Now, what was your position in 1983 at the

17 Chino Prison?
18 A

I was a lieutenant of the watch commander of the East

19 Facility.
20 Q

Lieutenant of the

21 A

East Facility.

22

THE COURT:

23

THE WITNESS:

Watch commander.
I was the watch commander.

24 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
25 Q

What is a watch commander?
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1 A

A watch commander is the individual that runs the

2 facility on a specified shift.

They had three shifts, from

3 8:00 to 4:00, 4:00 to 12:00, 4:00 to midnight.

I was the

4 4:00 to midnight.
5 Q

And to whom did you report?

6 A

I reported to my captain.

7 Q

And who was that?

8 A

Tanner, Captain Tanner.

9 Q

All right.

Is this true in 1983 and 1984?

10 A

Yes.

11 Q

All right.

12 A

I believe - - it's been 21 years.

Who is Steve Downey?
I believe Downey was

13 a counselor.
14 Q

A correctional counselor?

15 A

Yes.

16 Q

Now, were there classifications of correctional

17 counselors?
18 A

Yes.

19 Q

And what were the classifications of correctional --

20 A

It was correctional counselor two, one, and the regular

21 correctional counselor, and then they had correctional
22 counselors two and three.
23 Q

What was the two correctional counselor?

24 A

Two was a supervisor, and three was the manager.

25 Q

So a two reported to a three, correct?
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1 A

Right.

2 Q

Do you recall what Mr. Downey's status was as a

3 correctional counselor?

Was he a one, two, or a three?

4 A

I don't recall.

5 Q

Okay.

6 A

I know the name, and I did know him, but it's been 21

7 years.

Do you know a Richard Krupp?

So I -- I do know the name, yes.

8 Q

And what was

9 A

I believe he was.

was Mr. Krupp a correctional counselor?

10 Q

And was he a one, two, or a three?

11 A

I don't know.

12 Q

And, again, I'm talking about in 1983 or 1984.

13 A

Yes.

14 Q

Do you remember a Kenny Ballard?

15 A

Yes.

16 Q

And who was Kenny -- who do you understand Kenny

17 Ballard to be

I don't recall I should say.

to have -- to be?

18 A

He was a lieutenant.

19 Q

And that was in 1983 and 1984?

20 A

Yes.

21 Q

A lieutenant, and what were his - -

22 A

He was a gang

23 Q

duties?

24 A

He was the gang coordinator.

25 Q

During what years?
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1 A
2 '84.

I don't -- I know he was either '83 and '84 or just
I don't remember exactly the year that he started it.

3 Q

At some point -- when did -- withdraw that.

4

When did you become a lieutenant watch commander, sir,

5 at Chino Prison?
6 A

I'm trying to think.

I was a watch commander of the

7 first watch, and when I promoted 1981 I believe.
8 Q

I'm sorry.

Did you say you were promoted from

9 A

From sergeant.

10 Q

To watch commander in 1981?

11 A

I believe it was 1981.

12 Q

Did you get a subsequent change in job position after

13 1981 until you left?
14 A

And went to east.

15

And went to what?

Q

16 A

The East Facility.

17

What's the East Facility?

Q

18 A

That was the facility I was - - when you initially asked

19 me where was I doing, that's where I was.
20

Q

That was where you were in 1973 until 1981?

21 A

No.

22

All right.

Q

I'm confused.

Let's start in 1970 - - well,

23 let me ask you this and cut through this.

In 1983 and 1984,

24 were you a lieutenant watch commander?
25 A

Yes.
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1 Q

All right.

And you were in the East Facility?

2 A

Yes.

3 Q

Was that the minimum facility or maximum or something

4 else?
5 A

It was a medium facility.

6 Q

Medium, okay.

And you stayed as the lieutenant watch

7 commander in the medium facility until when?
8 A

19 -- April 1985.

9 Q

And then what did you become?

10 A

An institutional investigator.

11 Q

What was your involvement in the investigation of the

12 Ryan/Hughes crimes in 1983 and 1984?
13

MS. WILKENS:

Your Honor, objection.

14

THE WITNESS:

I had no involvement.

15

MS. WILKENS:

16

THE COURT:

17

MS. WILKENS:

Assumes - -

facts not in evidence.
Just a second.
There's no foundation.

He hasn't

18 discussed any involvement, and he's asking what is his
19 involvement in the investigation of the murders, and -20

MR. ALEXANDER:

21

THE COURT:

22

MR. ALEXANDER:

I'll ask --

Lack of foundation.
Yes, your Honor.

Thank you, Ms.

23 Wilkens.
24 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
25 Q

Mr. Shephard
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THE COURT:

1

Did he do any?

(Pause. )

2

3 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
4 Q

- - did you have any involvement in connection with the

5 investigation of the Ryan/Hughes murders?
6 A

No.

7 Q

All right.

You were, however, the gentleman who saw

8 you believe an individual escape from the prison on June the
9 1st or 2nd, 1983, correct?
10 A

Right.

11

All right.

Q

And do you recall being interviewed in June

12 of 1983 about what you observed?
MS. WILKENS:

13

Objection, your Honor.

403.

14 is not to investigate the escape of Kevin Cooper.

This

We were

15 to focus on Mr. Krupp's statements.
16

MR. ALEXANDER:

17

THE COURT:

18

MR. ALEXANDER:

All right.

I--

Sustained.
-- agree with that.

I'm just

19 trying to find out the extent of his involvement.
20 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
21 Q

Mr. Shephard, do you know where Mr. Kenny Ballard is

22 today?
23 A

No.

24 Q

Do you know where Mr. Steve Downey is today?

25 A

No.
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1 Q

You were, in fact, interviewed by the San Bernardino

2 Sheriff's Department in June of 1983, were you not?
3

MS. WILKENS:

4

THE COURT:

5

THE WITNESS:

Objection.

403.

Overruled.
I don't recall being interviewed by

6 San Bernardino.
7 BY MR. ALEXANDER:

8 Q

Is it your testimony you weren't or you simply don't

9 recall?

10 A

I don't recall.

11 Q

All right.

12 A

I don't recall.

13 Q

Okay.

14 this.

So you may have been.

You just don't know?

Now, did you in the course of -- let me ask you

Do you recall having a conversation in late summer

15 1983 with Richard Krupp about some information he had
16 gathered while interviewing a -- a prisoner for placement?

17 A

No.

18 Q

You don't recall that?

19 A

No.

20 Q

All right.

21

THE COURT:

There might be an issue as to the

22 date.
23

MR. ALEXANDER:

24

THE COURT:

25

MR. ALEXANDER:

Yes.

,,You said '83.
I'm going to go on to '84.
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1

THE COURT:

You might want to, okay.

2

MR. ALEXANDER:

I will, your Honor.

Thank you.

3 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
4 Q

Do you have a recollection, sir, of at any time in 1983

5 or 1984 discussing with Richard Krupp information he had
6 received while he was interviewing a prisoner for placement
7 within the California prison system -8 A

No.

9

- - relating to the Ryan/Hughes crimes?

Q

10 A

No.

11

Okay.

Q

You don't have any recollection?

12 A

No.

13

All right.

Q

Did you during 1983 and 1984 have

14 conversations with Richard Krupp in the course of your
15 responsibilities from time to time?
16 A

That's hard to say.

That's been 21 years ago.

I don't

17 remember where I had any
·18 Q

Well, I just want to know whether you had them.

I'm

19 not asking you - 20 A

I don't know whether I had any.

21

Okay.

Q

22 A

Not that long ago.

23

How - - how did you know him?

Q

24 A

What do you mean?

25

Well, I asked you Richard Krupp - - about the name

Q
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1 Richard Krupp, and you said yes, you knew him or knew who he
2 was, and I'm trying to find out how you knew -3 A

I know the name because I worked at that place for

4 quite a number of years.
5 Q

All right.

And during

during the period of time

6 that you worked at that place, do you recall at least
7 without the substance of it that you did have conversations
8 with Mr. Krupp?
9 A

Well, I'm sure I probably did.

10 Q

Okay.

Can you tell me the substance of --

11 A

No, I can't.

12

MR. ALEXANDER:

All right.

Thank you.

13

Let me mark as Exhibit next in order, your Honor,

14 37 -15

THE CLERK:

16

MR. ALEXANDER:

17 dated August

~6th,

Yes.
declaration of Mr. Shephard

2004.

18 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
19 Q

Mr. Shephard, I'm going to hand you what has been

20 marked as Exhibit 37 in this proceeding, which appears to be
21 a declaration signed by you in Stockton, California on
22 August the 16th, 2004.

Have you had an opportunity to look

23 at Exhibit 37, sir?
24 A

Yes.

25 Q

All right.

And you've seen this declaration before,
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1 correct?
2 A

Yes.

3 Q

All right.

And is that at least a photocopy of your

4 signature on the signature line?
5 A

Yes.

6 Q

And am I correct that this declaration was prepared --

7 was prepared for your signature by Ms. Wilkens or somebody
8 working with her?
9 A

Yes.

10 Q

All right.

11 A

Yes.

12 Q

All right.

And did Ms. Wilkens, she faxed this to you?

And was there a prior draft of this

13 declaration that you corrected or changed in any way?
14 A

No.

15 Q

So you signed it just as it's typed here?

16 A

Yes.

17 Q

All right.

And did you have a telephone conversation

18 with Ms. Wilkens prior to signing the document?
19 A

Yes.

20 Q

Okay.

And did she read this document to you before she

21 faxed it to you?
22 A

Yes.

23 Q

All right.

And had she called -- prior to reading this

24 to you, had she -- had you spoken with her either that day
25 or the day before or shortly a few days before?

Echo Reporting, Inc.

54

1 A

Yes.

2 Q

You did?

All right.

And can you tell me what she said

3 to you during that conversation?
4 A

In essence we discussed this memo, and she discussed

5 what

the proceedings that were going on and that she

6 wanted me to be here -7 Q

All right.

8 A

-- as a witness.

9 Q

And what did you say?

10 A

I screamed and hollered.

11 Q

You screamed and hollered?

12 A

Yeah, because I didn't want to come.

13 Q

Uh-huh.

All right.

14 lieutenant is used.

Now, the term correctional

What's a correctional lieutenant?

Is

15 that your language, sir?
16 A

No.

That's--

17 Q

Her language, Ms. Wilkens'?

18 A

People that work for the Department of Corrections are

19 correctional officers.
20 Q

Uh-huh.

21 A

You go from correctional officer to correctional

22 sergeant to correctional lieutenant to correctional captain,
23 and this

I -- I would imagine that the term correctional

24 is used to distinguish it from police departments or
25 whatever, let you know what part of the -- the law
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1 enforcement that you work in.
2 Q

Okay.

3 A

That's my opinion.

4 Q

All right.

5 A

But that is a correct term.

6 Q

That's not your term?

7 A

No, it's not my term.

8 Q

All right.

That is what we call them.

Now - - and you confirm that you testified

9 at Mr. Cooper's trial regarding his escape from CIM,
10 correct?
11 A

Yes.

12 Q

All right.

Now, when you say here you've never spoken

13 with Richard Krupp regarding information he obtained from an
14 inmate about the Ryan murders -- do you see that, sir?
15 A

Yes.

16 Q

Okay.

What you mean is you don't recall having that

17 conversation, correct?
18 A

I mean, I -- I mean that I didn't speak to Richard

19 Krupp regarding the

the escape.

At the time, as I said

20 earlier, I was a watch commander, you know.

I had nothing

21 to do with the investigation at that time.
22 Q

Okay.

But my --

23 A

So I wrote a -- my involvement in it was writing a

24 report on what I had seen that day.

I wrote the report,

25 turned it in to the appropriate people, and I was through
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1

with it with the exception of testifying in court and going

2 to the grand jury.
3 Q

Okay.

So you do recall -- well, withdraw that.

Your

4 testimony at trial was limited to the -- observing Mr.
5 Cooper near the intersection of Ramona and Edison --

6 A

Right.

7 Q

-- correct?

8 A

Right.

9 Q

All right.

Now, and you didn't talk to Mr. Krupp about

10 that -- your witnessing his escaping, correct?
11 A

No.

12 Q

Okay.

What I said is correct?

You didn't talk to Mr.

13 Krupp about that, about the escape of Kevin Cooper?
14 A

No -- well, I don't know whether I talked to him.

15 That's kind of a -- a tricky question.

I mean, I don't

16 know
17 Q

I don't mean it to be --

18 A

I work at a facility that every

•

when there was an

19 escape, everybody was there involved in it.
20 to people all the time.

So you talked

But, now, did I directly talk to

21 him involving him giving me some information?

No.

I was

22 not involved in the investigation.
23 Q

All right.

24 A

At all.

I wrote a report, turned it over to the watch

25 commander, and I was through with it.
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1 Q

Okay.

And that relates to the escape that you observed

2 of Kevin Cooper
3 A

Right.

4 Q

-- correct?

All right.

Now, directing your attention

5 to the third sentence, okay, what do you understand the
6 substance of that sentence to be?
7 A

What was your question?

8 Q

I simply want to know what was the. subject of that

9 sentence?

Does that sentence also refer to the escape, as

10 you understood it, when you signed this document?
11 A

Yes.

12 Q

All right.

Thank you.

13 the fourth sentence?

Now, and is that also true of

You say:

14

"I did not provide any information to

15

San Bernardino County Sheriff's

16

Department from an inmate at elM

17

regarding the Ryan murders."

18

Do you see that?

19 A

Yes.

20 Q

Does that also refer to the escape -

21 A

Right.

Q

as you understood it?

23 A

As I understood it, yes.

24

Thank you.

22

Q

-

Do you have a recollection, sir, of

25 discussing with Mr. Krupp information that Mr. Krupp

Echo Reporting, Inc.

58
1 received from an inmate that he had interviewed?

2 A

No.

3 Q

You don't have any recollection?

4 A

No.

5 Q

Okay.

You don't have any recollection of any

6 conversation with Mr. Krupp,

7 A

No.

8 Q

What I said is correct?

correct?

You have no recollection of

9 any conversation you had with Mr. Krupp?
10 A

No.

11 Q

You do have a recollection of conversation with --

12 A

No.

13 Q

Okay.

So when I say you didn't have a conversation

14 with Mr. Krupp -- when I say you have no recollection of
15 having a conversation with Mr. Krupp, all right, in 1983 or
16 1984, that's correct, right?
17 A

I have no recollection of having any discussion with

18 Mr. Krupp in 1983.
19 Q

You're not denying you had discussions with him.

You

20 just don't remember what it was about, correct?
21 A

I don't recall.

22 Q

When you say you don't recall, what do you mean you

23 don't recall?
24

25 badgered?

THE WITNESS:

Your Honor, do I have to be

I mean -- I mean this is 21 years ago.
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1

THE COURT:

What he's wanting to ask you is what

2 you recall and whether Mr. Krupp told you that someone else
3 confessed to the murder.
4

THE WITNESS:

And I said no several times.

5 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
6 Q

You don't recall?
THE COURT:

7

There's maybe a difference between not

8 recalling and being able to say no, I didn't.

For example,

9 if somebody called you and said in your capacity at Chino
10 that someone else had confessed to the murders and if you
11 called the San Diego -- San Bernardino County Sheriff's
12 Department about that, that would be something we would want
13 to know.
THE WITNESS:

14

Okay.

That did not happen.

My

15 answer to that is no.
16 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
17 Q

Okay.

So as to a call that you made to the San

18 Bernardino Sheriff's Department, you don't recall that
19 happening either?
20 A

No, I do not.

21 Q

Okay.

Now, and is it true you don't recall being

22 interviewed by the San Bernardino Sheriff's Department
23 sometime in June of 1983, correct?
24 A

No, I don't recall that.

25 Q

All right.

You're not denying that it happened.

You
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1 just donlt recall it?
2 A

I donlt recall it.

3 Q

All right.

SimilarlYI youlre not denying that you may

4 have had conversations with Mr. Krupp.

You just donlt

5 recall the substance of them l correct?
6 A

I donlt recall.

Thatls my answer.

7 Q

Well l bear with me a moment I okaYI and I -- really I

8 donlt mean to be badgering you.

11m trying to just do my

9 job and do it as gently as possible or some other fashion.
10

You understand the difference between not recalling

11 something and something not happening
12 A

I

right?

I do understand the difference between not recalling

13 and something not have happened.
14 Q

Okay.

15 A

And I would like to repeat again itl s been 21 years
So I cannot unequivocally saYI nOI it didnlt happen I

16 ago.

17 but I donlt recall.
18 Q

All right.

19 A

And that's my answer.

20 Q

All right.

21 A

I

22 Q

And thatls as to your conversations with Mr. Krupp?

And that's

do not recall.

23 Yes?
24 A

How many times do I have to say it?

25 Q

Well l just one more.
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1 A

How many times do I have to say --

2 Q

One more.
THE COURT:

3

You/re -- we/re trying to figure out

4 if somebody confessed to Mr. Krupp and if that was relayed
5 to you and if you called the sheriffs

l

and some things maybe

6 you don/t recall or some things you say "I absolutely know
7 that didn/t happen."
8

THE WITNESS:

9

THE COURT:

It didn/t happen or I don/t recall.
Which one?

10

THE WITNESS:

I don/t recall.

11

MR. ALEXANDER:

Thank you very much

I

your Honor.

12 Thank you for your helpl your Honor.
13

MS. WILKENS:

14

Thank

YOUI

your Honor.

CROSS EXAMINATION

15 BY MS. WILKENS:
16 Q

Mr. Shephard

Now l

I

I understand that it/s been 21 years

17 and you can/t unequivocally represent that you had no
18 conversations with Mr. Krupp

I

correct?

19 A

I beg your pardon?

20 Q

You can/t sit here today and tell the Court that you

21 never -22 A

NO

23 Q

-- had a conversation with Mr. Krupp?

24 A

I

25 Q

All right.

I

I

can/t.

can/t.

Now l can you tell us whether or not you had
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1 a meeting with Mr. Krupp and his supervisor wherein it was
2 discussed that an inmate had overheard three individuals
3 confess to the Ryan murders?
4 A

No, I didn't have any meeting that I can recall.

5 Q

All right.

6 A

Right.

7 Q

Okay.

So you're unable to recall?

So you can't categorically state it didn't

8 happen?
9 A
10 Q

No, I can't.
Okay.

Now, if someone were to say that you had

11 indicated to them that you had telephoned the San Bernardino
12 Sheriff's Department to relate information relating to a
13 confession to the Ryan murders in -- sometime in 1983 or
14 '84, would you be able to recall whether or not you, in
15 fact, made such a
16 A

I can

17 Q

phone call?

18 A

tell you that

19

MR. ALEXANDER:

Objection, your Honor.

It's

20 hypothetical.
21

THE COURT:

22

THE WITNESS:

Overruled.

Go ahead.

I can tell you that didn't occur

23 because it wouldn't have -- it wouldn't have happened
24 procedurally.
25 \\
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1 BY MS. WILKENS:
2 Q

Okay.

Why would you not have been in a position to

3 have made such a phone call?

4 A

If -- if such a call had come to me as a watch

5 commander, my job would have been to report it to the

6 investigators who in turn do the investigating and do all
7 the contacting with the Sheriff's Department and what have

8 you, not the watch commander.

MR. ALEXANDER:

9

10 Honor.
11

Objection.

Move to strike, your

Speculation.
THE COURT:

Overruled.

The answer stands.

12 BY MS. WILKENS:
13 Q

So as a watch commander overseeing a shift at the

14 prison, if -- if someone were to contact you and say they
15 wanted to relate information obtained from an inmate
16 regarding a -- a murder investigation, that doesn't fall
17 within your duties, is that correct?
18 A

What I would do is take the information and call the

19 investigators and say I have this information that somebody
20 gave me, and here it is, and then I'm -- I'm through with

21 it.
22 Q

All right.

Now, Mr. Krupp, assuming he left elM in

23 1984, would you have ever been functioning as an
24 investigator at CIM during his tenure?
25 A

No.
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1 Q
2

A

Okay.

And why is that?

I was the watch commander.

He -- I would never -- I

3 wasn't an investigator until April 1985.
4 Q

All right.

So you had no responsibilities for

5 investigations until April of 1985?
6 A

1985.

7 Q

Have you ever had duties at CIM as the gang

8 coordinator?
9 A

No.

10 Q

Do you recall a gentleman by the name of Ted Fahey?

11 A

Yes, I remember him.

12 Q

And what do you recall Mr. Fahey's duties were at CIM?

13 A

I believe he was a counselor.

14 Q

All right.

Do you have any recollection of Mr. Fahey

15 having contacted you to discuss information obtained from an
16 inmate relating to the Ryan murders?
17 A

No, I -- I don't recall that.

18 Q

Okay.

19 A

No.

20 Q

All right.

So you can't recall?

You can't say categorically it didn't

21 happen?
22 A

No.

23 Q

All right.

Was there -- was there any

do you have

24 any recollection of any discussions relating to Kevin Cooper
25 other than his escape from the facility?
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1 A

No.
MS. WILKENS:

2

Thank you, your Honor.

No further

3 questions.
4

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

5 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
6 Q

I'm not going to ask you that question I asked you

7 before, sir.

Sir, are you familiar with the Offender-Based

8 Information System within the Department of Corrections?
9

MS. WILKENS:

Objection.

10

THE COURT:

11

MR. ALEXANDER:

403.

Beyond the scope.
It relates directly, your Honor,

12 to the question -- well, to the question of documentation of
13 what Mr. Krupp reported -- or testified to.
14

THE COURT:

Beyond the scope.

15

MR. ALEXANDER:

16

THE COURT:

Beyond the scope.

Beyond the scope?

Of cross.

17 BY MR. ALEXANDER:
18 Q

Are you familiar with a Institution Staff

19 Recommendation Study, sir?
20

MS. WILKENS:

Objection.

Beyond the scope of

21 cross examination.
22

MR. ALEXANDER:

Well, if we find out if he's

23 familiar with it, I think I can tie it up, your Honor, find
24 out what it is.

It would relate exactly to what Mr. Krupp

25 testified to.
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1

THE COURT:

Sustained.

2

MR. ALEXANDER:

Can I just ask without asking the

3 substance whether he has knowledge of that?
4

MS. WILKENS:

Same objection, your Honor.

5

THE COURT:

6

MR. ALEXANDER:

Sustained.
Well, then I don't have any

7 further questions for Mr. Shephard, and I'm sorry you had to
8 come a long way.
9

THE COURT:

We have a witness form that we could

10 get him to sign today so that we wouldn't have to get it
11 again.
12

MR. ALEXANDER:

13

THE COURT:

14

MR. ALEXANDER:

Okay.

And then -That's if you want money, Mr.

15 Shephard.
16

THE COURT:

-- as far as filling out the rest of

17 the form, only -18

MS. WILKENS:

Your Honor, in order to secure the

19 attendance of the witnesses, we, of course, cut checks in
20 advance because we're required to do so to make the subpoena
21 lawful.
22

THE COURT:

23

MS. WILKENS:

Okay.
So if Mr. Shephard could sign it,

24 and then we could work out with counsel reimbursement.
25

THE COURT:

And you'll work it out.

Exactly.

But
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1 at least we'll have his signature, so we don't have to -2

MS. WILKENS:

3

THE COURT:

Yes.

We appreciate that.

-- track you down.

You want to show

4 him where to sign.
MR. ALEXANDER:

5

On this same subject, your

6 Honor -- and I can give these to the Marshals Office if it's
7 preferable, but we were able to get Ms. Wolfe and Ms.
8 Slonaker to sign if you want me to submit those to the
9 Court.
Should he give them to you - -

10

THE COURT:

11

MR. ALEXANDER:

12

THE COURT:

13

MR. ALEXANDER:

14

I don't want to
or to the marshal?
Whatever Ms. Mason

(Pause. )

15

THE COURT:

Okay.

16

MR. ALEXANDER:

17

THE COURT:

Submit them to us.

Thank you very much, your Honor.

We'll make a copy of the front page

18 anyway.
19

THE WITNESS:

20

THE COURT:

21 corning.

Okay.

Is that it, your Honor?
You are excused.

Thank you for

That's all the witnesses for today, is that

22 correct?
(The witness was excused.)

23
24

MS. WILKENS:

25

MR. ALEXANDER:

Yes, your Honor.
All right.

9:00 o'clock?
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1

THE COURT:

And then on the update on the EDTA, I

2 received a CV from the person at Scripps -- not directly
3 from him but from the Petitioner.
4

MS. WILKENS:

Yes, your Honor, and I wanted to

5 clarify from the outset so there's no confusion.
6 asked to be of assistance to the Court.

We were

We were asked to

7 locate someone who would be qualified and willing to do the
8 testing, and we have done so.

We have approached Doctor

9 Sciudak from the perspective that it is of assistance to the
10 Court, that he would be doing it for the Court.
11

THE COURT:

If the Court orders the Attorney

12 General to pay, it's your case.

Unlike the other situation

13 where you had an ethical reason why you could not pay, the
14 Court can order the Government to pay.
15

MS. WILKENS:

Well, your Honor, with all due

16 respect
17

THE COURT:

Or you can go to a mediator and decide

18 whether there is an alternative to this where that's -19

MS. WILKENS:

20

THE COURT:

21

MS. WILKENS:

22

THE COURT:

23

MS. WILKENS:

Well
-- the possibility
-- your Honor --- and then there are fewer expenses.
Well, with all due respect, our

24 position is that we're only here by virtue of a fraud that
25 was perpetrated on the Court.

Our other position is we have
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1 nothing pending before this Court that should be heard.
2 They're not entitled to discovery.

They're not entitled to

3 testing, unless they make the threshold showing under
4 2244(b), which we indicate they cannot make because they
5 knew of the information years in advance before it was
6 brought to the Ninth Circuit and this Court.
7

So to ask us to pay for the expense of testing

8 that they are seeking for their theory of tampering, which
9 we don't believe even states a prima facie cause of action
10 let alone a basis for discovery is -- is difficult.

But

11 I -- I hasten to add
12

THE COURT:

13 the Ninth Circuit?
14

Can you move for reconsideration to
Isn't that their order rather than mine?

MS. WILKENS:

Well, their order cannot exceed

15 beyond the authority to return to this Court.

It is a

16 preliminary order that is not subject to appeal because it
17 is so narrow in its scope.

The Ninth Circuit cannot compel

18 this Court to order discovery or anything else.

What the

19 Ninth Circuit can do and what they did was allow Kevin
20 Cooper to file a petition before this Court.
21

Every determination that they made is subject to

22 redetermination by this Court, and their orders with respect
23 to EDTA testing were advisory only because we have no
24 recourse.

We have no right of rehearing.

We have no right

25 of certiorari, and I think my point with respect to Doctor
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1 Sciudak is that he is amenable to doing this for this Court
2 at no charge.
3

4 expert.

The point I'm trying to make is he's not our
We are not pursuing testing.

Part of the problem

5 is they don't do what the Court orders them to do.

The

6 Court told them to go and get an expert, which. they failed
7 to do.

So then we go and do it because we're ordered to do

8 it, and then suddenly it's as though we're the proponent of
9 testing.
10

We are not the proponent of testing -THE COURT:

That's been -- that's been your

11 position, and
12

MS. WILKENS:

But -- but it's a position that is

13 grounded in textbook law.

We should not even be here, okay.

14 They should not have been granted permission to come here.
15 That's done.

16

We have no recourse, but this Court, it's --

THE COURT:

You had recourse, and you took cert to

17 the U.S. Supreme Court, and
18

MS. WILKENS:

19

THE COURT:

20

MS. WILKENS:

No.
-- they denied it.

Well, yes, because you're not

21 allowed to take certiorari.

And the reason it's an

22 unappealable order is because it is so narrow in scope,

23 because the thinking is you are merely being a gatekeeper
24 allowing them to come to this Court in the first instance,
25 and this Court is completely unincumbered with respect to
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1 every determination that is made with respect to the

2 petition.

And,

frankly, your Honor, as you'll note two

3 weeks ago, the Court learned that the Midge Carroll
4 information that was cited in the Ninth Circuit decision as
5 having been unknown to counsel until January of 2004 was, in
6 fact, known years earlier, and this is incredibly important
7 in a successive writ.
8

So they are before this Court after misleading the

9 Ninth Circuit as to what they knew and when they knew it,
10 and now they're asking this Court to undertake testing that
11 is extremely problematic, and - - and I

don't know if the

12 Court's had an opportunity to review it, but the attitude
13 they're taking is that now we're to develop a protocol.
14 They'll run it by Doctor Ballard, and if it's okay with
15 Doctor Ballard, then we can go forward.

And I would like to

16 know how we went from a junk scientist being disallowed
17 funding by this Court to somehow the junk scientist becoming
18 the arbiter of what's going to be done in terms of the
19 testing, and this is the dilemma I face.
20

You told me to go find a scientist, and I found

21 you an exquisitely qualified scientist who was willing to do
22 this at no cost for this Court, but I am not the proponent
23 of this testing.

I don't think the testing should be done.

24 Doctor Sciudak is not our expert.
25 have identified.

He is someone that we

We were told to identify a quality
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1 scientist for this Court, and we have done so.
2

And the other thing too is, quite frankly, having

3 seen the billable rates for Doctor DeForest, I don't know
4 why we're using a criminalist from New York in this case
5 when there are plenty of criminalists in California who
6 charge considerably less.
7

8 either.

So -- and I'm not paying for Doctor DeForest
But, you know, we're

9 the precedent

that'~

we're very concerned about

about to be set here because Doctor

10 Ballard will not disclose his methodology because of his
11 proprietary interest, and we were scoffed at in the Daubert
12 proceedings when we mentioned economic interest, and your
13 Honor allowing Doctor Ballard to participate, I can assure
14 you that he is going to be involved in a lot of 11th hours
15 marketing his methodology.
16

I am extremely concerned about this Court giving

17 an imprimatur to Doctor Ballard, and that's why we've gone
18 and found a very reputable local scientist at an imminent
19 research facility who will do what this Court orders in
20 terms of testing.
21
22 things.

THE COURT:

Well, I think you've said a lot of

I'm sure Mr. Alexander would like to respond, but

23 I'm -- I am following Ninth Circuit orders, and I do believe
24 that the Court has to have a scientific basis for it.
25

The Court previously issued an order denying
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1 without prejudice the issue concerning whether there'd been
2 peer testing and review and determining whether it's
3 admissible following the testing.
I do think that if we're able to determine -- to

4

5 find a qualified scientist that given the history of this
6 case, it's preferable for the Court to go

~head

and d6 the

7 testing, and the Court does have preliminary ideas about the
8 testing.

The Court's order concerning the involvement, if

9 any, of Doctor Ballard still stands.

It's subject to a

10 pending motion for reconsideration which the Court has not
11 yet ruled on, and what I wanted to do is to get a person who
12 was qualified.

We found out that the testing facility is

13 available locally.

We have a proposed individual that's

14 qualified.
15

In this instance, normally the procedure is

16 adversarial.

One side gets an expert, another side gets a

17 counter-expert.

But in -- in certain circumstances the

18 Court has its own expert -- that's a little more
19 complicated -- under the rules that apply.
20

So where the Court is -- and I'll permit Mr.

21 Alexander to -- to state his position as well -- it is
22 correct, this is a very serious matter.
23 case.

It is a capital

The State of California is seeking the ultimate

24 sanction, that of the death penalty.

The California Supreme

25 Court has approved that, and the petition for clemency was
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1 also denied by the State of California.
2

This is a federal habeas corpus case, and we apply

3 federal habeas corpus standards.

The Ninth Circuit has

4 decided to permit Mr. Cooper to file a successive petition,
5 and we are proceeding in, in my view, a logical fashion to
6 examine certain issues that I think would be helpful to have
7 a more developed record.
S

In that respect, we've done the mitochondrial DNA

9 testing.

It confirmed to the Court's satisfaction that the

10 hairs that were in the hand of Jessica were -- you could not
11 rule out maternal relatives, and there was nothing to
12 indicate that they were pulled hairs or from any other
13 assailant.

That issue to the Court's satisfaction has been

14 resolved.
15

The remaining issue addressed by the Ninth Circuit

16 was the EDTA testing.

I don't think in the rush of things

17 there was the typical District Court evaluation of
18 scientific principles, protocols, facts supporting it.

But,

19 nevertheless, it's my belief that given where we're at right
20 now, we should go ahead with the testing, recognizing that
21 the State of California through the Attorney General has
22 strong objections to it.
23

As far as certain funding matters, it may be that

24 the Court would compel over your objection -- you can take a
25 writ of mandate or exercise your -- whatever remedies you
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1 have if there are any, but we have certain guidance from the
2 Ninth Circuit.

It is simply a requirement to then permit a

3 successive petition, and then we're going ahead and doing
4 that.
5

6 known.

As we've learned, some of the information was well
Midge Carroll was discovered two years ago.

Mr.

7 Ruiz was known and investigated by the defense a long time
8 ago.

So some of the declarations on both sides have not

9 quite turned out when we talked to the people to be exactly
10 what was in the declarations.
11

So given the seriousness of the matter and the

12 direction of the Ninth Circuit, the Court believes that it
13 is preferable to come up with some method of testing and
14 then evaluating whether it's admissible or not.
15

Mr. Alexander?

16

MR. ALEXANDER:

17

THE COURT:

18

MR. ALEXANDER:

19

THE COURT:

20

MR. ALEXANDER:

Thank you, your Honor.

Now, let's not
I'm not - make barbs backwards and forwards.
I'm not going to -

21 hear one such word from -- from me on that.

-

you will not
I will relate

22 the following relating to Mr. Sciudak, S-C-I-U-D-A-K, as I
23 understand it.
24

I have not seen his CV, number one, but I'm sure

25 they have a copy.
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1

MS. WILKENS:

It's on counsel's table.

It was

2 here at 1:00 o'clock.
3

4 not that.

MR. ALEXANDER:

Okay.

I saw some other things but

In any event, when I received the pleading that

5 the Deputy Attorney General filed listing other locations
6 for this-- the equipment that we're talking about, all
7 right, I called and got put -- I called the research center.
8 I didn't know Mr. Sciudak from anybody else there, and I was
9 put in touch with him, all right.
10

He told me that he had spoken with Ms. Wilkens,

11 and by that time I had received this request for specific
12 information from Doctor Ballard which if he is going to
13 participate in the process, he's happy to disclose.

If he's

14 not going to be in the process, then it becomes a matter,
15 you know, as to whether or not that company wants to say how
16 they go about doing something.
17

THE COURT:

Sure, and I -- and we could take care

18 of that with a protective order.
19

MR. ALEXANDER:

20

THE COURT:

Precisely.

Of course.

If it becomes an issue as to peer

21 review, I mean, we handle this in civil litigation
22

MR. ALEXANDER:

23

THE COURT:

24

MR. ALEXANDER:

25

THE COURT:

Yes.
all the time.
Yes, of course.
that it could be used solely for
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1 purposes of this litigation if it becomes relevant.

If

2 you're holding someone out as an expert and if they are
3 involved, then obviously there is a major issue as to
4 whether there is peer review and scientific validity and
5 other things.
6
~

But if he is not involved, then he doesn't want to

7 volunteer his

his intellectual property

8

MR. ALEXANDER:

9

THE COURT:

And that was - to somebody else.

10

MR. ALEXANDER:

11

THE COURT:

Right.

And I fully understand that.

I think

12 we can take care of that.
13

MR. ALEXANDER:

I quite agree, your Honor.

So I

14 had that conversation with Mr. Sciudak, and, candidly, the
15 conversation got a little bit contentious because he
16 couldn't understand why Mr. Ballard would not disclose that
17 information to him, and we sort of ended that conversation.
18

Then I called him back two days ago I think to

19 find out whether or not -- and I asked Ms. Wilkens this by
20 E-mail --whether or not he was willing to allow us to use
21 the equipment there and what his experience was with EDTA
22 because I read more than I care to read about his things
23 he's written, understanding every fourth word at best.
24

And what he said to me is "Ms. Wilkens told me not

25 to talk to you," and I said, "Well, let me tell you the
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1 information I want, and then you'll be at an advantage
2 because you'll know what I want, and"
3

THE COURT:

But normally if the Court is directing

4 one side to get an expert, then the other side wouldn't be
5 contacting them.
6

So we're in --

MR. ALEXANDER:

I understood him to be and still

7 understand him to be, although I have serious reservations
8 now, to be an independent person that Ms. Wilkens didn't
9 know ahead of time, we didn't know of ahead of time.
10 don't know

I

I don't see EDTA mentioned, you know, in any

11 of the things that I've read that he's -- that he's written
12 or at least this kind of testing.

So I really don't know.

13 I'll be interested to see the -- the resume.
14

But I can't talk to the man, and I can't get

15 answers from her.

Now, I'm not from here, but, you know, I

16 don't think I need to be treated like that.
17

In any event, that's all I have to say as to this

18 issue.
19

THE COURT:

I think what we should be aiming for

20 is a productive resolution of coming up with a protocol for
21 a scientifically valid EDTA test over the -- over the valid
22 objection of the State of California which they believe -23 believe what she's saying today is had the Ninth Circuit had
24 additional information, maybe they would, maybe they
25 wouldn't.

But, in any event, given where we're at now,
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1 letts go ahead and get testing done t and wetve identified a
2 local person who does appear from the Courtts review of the
3 curriculum vitae to be very well qualified.

4

MR. ALEXANDER:

5

THE COURT:

Now t let me also mention I have --

We still have the pending motion for

6 reconsideration as to

7

MR. ALEXANDER:

8

THE COURT:

9 involvement or not.

Right.
the extent of Doctor Ballardts

And remember t the last time around I

10 said I had some thoughts about a double blind -II

MR. ALEXANDER:

12

THE COURT:

Yes.
testing procedure where -- where I

13 think sometimes if one expert knows that another expert is
14 looking over their shoulder t then -- and the -- and the
15 reverse is true as well t that perhaps the testing is

16 elevated.
17

MR. ALEXANDER:

I also want to report to the Court

18 that at your instruction I contacted Michael Bawdin
19 (phonetic)

the day before he left on vacation t and I thought

20 it --

21

THE COURT:

And Michael Bawdin is?

22

MR. ALEXANDER:

Michael Bawdin is the New York

23 State -24

THE COURT:

Yes.

25

MR. ALEXANDER:

examiner.

Hets quite well
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1 known.
2

THE COURT:

Uh-huh.

3

MR. ALEXANDER:

And he was going on vacation for

4 two weeks, but then the other night, coincidentally, I saw
5 him being interviewed, not about our case, by what's his
6 name, Geraldo Rivera.

So I then called him, and we've

7 exchanged messages, to get his input.

And then, finally,

8 I've attempted to call Mark LeBeau as you instructed.

I

9 understand he's an administrator at -- so he .may very well
10 have some information about access to the lab and the like,
11 and I have not heard back from him, but Doctor DeForest is
12 attempting to contact him because they know one another, and
13 Doctor DeForest -- I can give you the tree -- is the one who
14 has taught so many of these people, and I'll -- I'll leave
15 it at that.
16

THE COURT:

You'll leave it at that.

17

MR. ALEXANDER:

I have a comment about what you

18 get when you don't pay, but that's another question.
19

THE COURT:

By tomorrow I would like to have a

20 productive conversation about where we go with respect to
21 the EDTA testing and both sides can evaluate.
22 a look at the

cv and -- and evaluate that.

You can take

We may leave in

23 the blanks for the names, but we may come up with something.
24

If the parties are unable to give the Court help,

25 then I'll do it.

I'll issue an order and then that if
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1

it's -- I'm looking for help, to the extent I get productive

2 help, then that helps me, and I think it helps the process
3 as well.
4

MR. ALEXANDER:

5

THE COURT:

We're making -- we've had significant

6 numbers of hearings.
7 witness list.

All right.

We're -- we're progressing along the

I would like you to check on Mr. Wilson.

8

MS. WILKENS:

9

THE COURT:

Who?
Wilson?

10

MR. ALEXANDER:

11

THE COURT:

12

MR. ALEXANDER:

13

MS. WILKENS:

14

THE COURT:

15

MR. ALEXANDER:

Uh-huh.

Tim.
Uh-huh.
Detective Wilson?
Wilson.
I think we may have some other

16 information in that regard, including -- remember the
17 problem we were having trying to figure out how you identify
18 who the inmate is?
19 progress.

I think we've made some substantial

I hope to report to the Court either tomorrow or

20 Wednesday.
21

THE COURT:

On a name?

22

MR. ALEXANDER:

23

THE COURT:

24

MR. ALEXANDER:

Uh-huh.

Okay.
And a methodology hopefully that

25 will reveal the name.
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1

THE COURT:

That's different than the -- the

2 methodology is different than the
3

MR. ALEXANDER:

Well, I

Ms. Wilkens won't tell

4 you this, but she knows exactly how this might be done also,
5 but for whatever reason
6

THE COURT:

7

MR. ALEXANDER:

8

THE COURT:

9

MR. ALEXANDER:

10

THE COURT:

11

MS. WILKENS:

There has to be a basis for it -Yes, your Honor.
because Ms. Eddings
It will be a document, your Honor.

Well-Well, also, it has to be material

12 exculpatory information, and since it's rather clear that
13 Mr. Cooper committed the crimes, I really don't think we
14 need to go into, you know, doing all sorts of expensive
15 record searches.

Well--

16

THE COURT:

17

MR. ALEXANDER:

18

THE COURT:

All right.

I'll report --

we'll evaluate it.

If there's a

19 request for an evidentiary hearing, then the Court will
20 evaluate it in the totality of the information that the
21 Court has and exercising its -- its discretion
22 appropriately, then make a decision that then is subject to
'23

review by any reviewing court.

24

MR. ALEXANDER:

25

THE COURT:

It--

We'll see you tomorrow.
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Your Honor - -

1

MS. WILKENS:

2

THE COURT:

3

MR. ALEXANDER:

4

THE COURT:

5

MR. ALEXANDER:

6

MS. WILKENS:

I think we should probably
Yes, stop now.
stop now.
Very well.

Thank you, your Honor.

Your Honor, I need some

7 clarification in terms of Doctor Sciudak because I was
8 approaching Doctor Sciudak as being an independent expert.
9 I did not tell Doctor Sciudak not to speak to Mr. Alexander.
10 I told him it was his choice.
11

THE COURT:

12

MS. WILKENS:

Uh-huh.
And he exercised his choice not to

13 continue answering Mr. Alexander's questions.

We have

14 retained an independent expert, and I want to identify him
15 so that Mr. Alexander will not be phoning him up.
16

The Department of Justice has retained Doctor

17 Terry Lee of the City of Hope subject to the approval of the
18 City of Hope.
19

THE COURT:

I see.

20

MS. WILKENS:

21

THE COURT:

22

MS. WILKENS:

23

THE COURT:

24

MR. ALEXANDER:

25

MS. WILKENS:

So - For EDTA?
Yes.
Okay.

And then Mr. - -

Doctor Terry Lee?
Well, you

- -

yeah, Terry Lee.
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1

MR. ALEXANDER:

2

THE COURT:

3

MR. ALEXANDER:

4

MS. WILKENS:

5

THE COURT:

6

MS. WILKENS:

7

THE COURT:

8

MS. WILKENS:

Terry Lee.

Terry Lee.
Yeah.
Right.

And so

And then will he corne up with a - No.
-

- protocol?
No.

And, see, this is part of the

9 problem we're having because I asked Doctor Sciudak to do
10 the testing, would he do the testing, would he do it at his
11 facilities, and he wanted to know the protocol.

So I

12 provided him the protocol, and I provided Doctor Lee the
13 protocol that's before the Court.
It is utterly meaningless to them as scientists,

14

15 and Doctor Lee informed me that since Doctor Ballard has not
16 subjected any of his methodology to peer review, he has
17 absolutely no idea what would be done.
18 unacceptable to
19

unknown~

20 return,

And so i

think it's

for us to agree to a protocol that is

and so we try to get information, and we're told in
"Well, give us information," and then there's the

21 insinuations that the people we're working with are not
22 stellar because obviously they would know how to do this.
23

And so, once again, we see the shifting of

24 burdens, and the last thing I want to' say to the Court is
25 I -- I'm very respectful of this Court's rulings.

We
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1 obviously believe the Court when it indicates it's going
2 forward with testing, and we are being very cooperative, but
3 I will indicate I can't conceive of why we would be paying
4 for it because even though we're the state, every burden of
5 proof is on Mr. Cooper.
6

THE COURT:

You would be paying for your own

7 expert.
8

MS. WILKENS:

Sure.

But I don't understand why we

9 would be paying for the testing.

Doctor Sciudak has

10 indicated the testing would be approximately $20,000.
11 Again, to maintain his independence and his credibility, it
12 would do it at no cost.

And, of course, Mr. Alexander makes

13 the remark about you get what you pay for, and I reiterate
14 my remark about Mr. Ballard and the profiteering and the
15 economic incentive in the context of Daubert.
16

MR. ALEXANDER:

Your Honor, I forgot to mention --

17 I mentioned this to your Honor's clerk -- and that is -- and
18 I'm going to investigate this, that there may be available
19 funds under the Anti-Drug Abuse Act, which I have learned
20 about that is a source of funds in habeas proceedings, and
21 I'm willing to explore that.

So I -- it's well documented

22 I've found.
23

THE COURT:

24

MS. WILKENS:

25

THE COURT:

For-The-For CJA testing experts are paid for.
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1

MR. ALEXANDER:

2

THE COURT:

3

MR. ALEXANDER:

Okay.

Well, all right.

Fine.

So under the -That's not a problem.

This may be

4 a source of other funding and
5

THE COURT:

Not for your side.

6

MR. ALEXANDER:

Huh?

I'm sorry.

Excuse me.

I

7 didn't mean to say huh.
8

THE COURT:

On the -- on the -- if it's requested

9 by the defense, yes.

But CJA funds do not pay for the

10 Attorney General's expert, and only under certain
11 circumstances are there alternative methods of funding.

So

12 I think we're proceeding under the Capital Case Criminal
13 Justice Act funds available for experts.
14

Now, those are subject to budgets and review by

15 the Ninth Circuit Judicial Council and the Capital Case
16 Committee.
17

MR. ALEXANDER:

18

MS. WILKENS:

Yes.
Well, just theoretically, if the

19 Court were to order testing and it were to be performed by
20 an expert selected -- you know, approved by the Court, I
21 don't understand why the costs would shift to the state.
22 And I don't mean to nitpick, but we don't have a lot of
23 money, your Honor.

So we've incurred a great deal of

24 expense locating their witnesses, bringing their witnesses
25 into court, and now I'm going to report that we're going to
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1 pay for their testing because, you know -- well, you're
2 telling me I'm going to pay for the testing.
3

THE COURT:

I'm saying -- I'm saying that if you

4 retain your own expert, you pay for your own expert.
5

MS. WILKENS:

6

THE COURT:

Sure.
If your own expert does additional

7 testing, then maybe the -- the Petitioner is probably not
8 going to pay for your expert's testing.
9

MS. WILKENS:

10 Petitioner.

Well, it's -- it's not so much the

It's the 844 funds, and if this Court wants Mr.

11 Cooper to have the benefit of testing and he insists upon an
12 expert the Court doesn't care to fund, then you're telling
13 me that we will fund the appropriate expert or we have the
14 junk scientist?
15

MR. ALEXANDER:

16

THE COURT:

You know --

That's subject to a motion for

17 reconsideration, and it's a fine balance because the
18 Petitioner has a right to seek an expert of his own
19 choosing.

The expert then has to be approved by the Court

20 and funded by -- through the capital case procedures.

So

21 it -- we are proceeding in a careful and reasoned fashion,
22 evaluating all the information that we have.
23

MR. ALEXANDER:

In my first conversation, your

24 Honor, with Mr. Sciudak, he said to me that this EDTA
25 testing is very simple and it's not a big deal.

So I don't
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1 understand what Ms. Wilkens is afraid of.
2

But, in any event, I think

3

THE COURT:

4

MR. ALEXANDER:

5

THE COURT:

I think we can
-- we're done.
we can recess today and think about

6 how we can structure an -- an EDTA test over the objection
7 of the State of California, and their budgetary issues are
8 similar to the Court's budgetary issues.

Certainly the

9 Court doesn't have local funds for -- it's very -- it's very
10 complicated as to when funding can and cannot occur.

For a

11 capital case defendant that has pro bono counsel, there are
12 funds available for appropriate experts.
13

MR. ALEXANDER:

What time would you like us here

14 tomorrow, your Honor?
15

THE COURT:

I was going to say 9:00 o'clock.

16

MR. ALEXANDER:

17

THE COURT:

Very well.

And so we'll see you at 9:00 o'clock

18 with our witnesses for tomorrow.
19

MR. ALEXANDER:

20

MS. WILKENS:

21

THE COURT:

22

MS. WILKENS:

Yes.
Yes, your Honor.

And those would include we hope?
Deputy Beltz, Mr. Mansfield, and Mr.

23 Al Ward.
24

MR. ALEXANDER:

Since Mr. Mansfield is

25 incarcerated, is it fair to assume he will go first?
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1

MS. WILKENS:

I hadn't assumed that.

I was going

2 to do the courtesy of letting Mr. Beltz go first, but
3

MR. ALEXANDER:

I don't care.

I just want to

4 know.
5

MS. WILKENS:

-- whatever the Court prefers.

6 Additionally, your Honor, I'm assuming that Mr. Alexander
7 knows this because Mr. Mansfield is his witness,

but

8 obviously since he's in custody -- since he's in custody,

9 there is the issue of impeachment with his criminal
10 convictions, and I would indicate that for purposes of the
11 Federal Rules of Evidence, for purposes of impeachment with
12 the 10-year rule and with felonies, non-felonies of -13 relating to honesty, the only conviction that will be
14 relevant is the one that he's currently serving time on.
15

THE COURT:

16

MS. WILKENS:

Which is?
What is that, Adrianne, burglary

17 or -18

THE COURT:

19

MS. WILKENS:

You'll have it for tomorrow.
I believe it's grand theft.

We'll

20 double-check and provide it to Mr. Alexander.
21

THE COURT:

We'll see you tomorrow at 9:00

22 o'clock, and it looks like Mr. Beltz will be first.
23

MR. ALEXANDER:

All right.

Very well.

Thank you

24 so much, your Honor.
25

THE COURT:

Thank you.
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1

(Proceedings concluded.)

2
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